

Proposal 1 - Amend Bylaw 122.2 (Complaints Procedure)

Rationale:

The phrase “Non-documentary” is unnecessary and very unclear. The new declaration on the front page of the Official Complaint Form will cover statements as well as evidence.

The current language in the Bylaws is very “U.S. centric” as affidavits involve notaries which have different duties and responsibilities depending on which country they are licensed. Additionally, penalties for perjury are criminal and TICA has no such power.

The rule on Show protests, as originally written, is unclear. Clubs do not hear complaints. Show complaints are handled exactly the same way as other complaints, however because any action by TICA may affect year end scores or points may be removed, there is an additional requirement that they be filed and handled as quickly as possible. The words “protest” and “complaint” have no real difference in procedure.

| | |
|---|---|
| Pros: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• The revisions replace US-centric provisions with ones that can be applied across TICA’s world• Removes ambiguities in current 122.2.2 | Cons: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• None identified. |
|---|---|

Amend Bylaw 122.2:

122.2 Procedure. Disciplinary power may be exercised only after due notice and an opportunity to be heard are first given to the party accused.

122.2.1 Complaints. The complaining party must submit the complaint on the official form set forth in the Standing Rules to these Bylaws. The complaining party must state the specific By-Law, Show Rule, Registration Rule or other rule alleged to be violated by the accused party, and attach all documents and other evidence which they contend supports the complaint. Any complaint must be filed with the Executive Office not later than 180 days after the alleged incident occurred and be accompanied by a non-refundable filing fee as set forth in the Standing Rules.

Contd/...

122.2.2 ~~Show Protests/~~**Complaints. Complaints/**Protests charging misconduct or violation of the rules of the association, arising in connection with a show, shall be submitted in writing with any evidence and a filing fee as set forth in the Standing Rules, ~~to the Show Committee~~ within 10 working days following the completion of the show. ~~If the protest is against the actions of the club, the show committee of the club, a member of the club or show committee, or production company, the protest can optionally be filed with the Executive Secretary of the Association, with the filing fee as set forth in the Standing Rules, to be handled by the Board of Directors pursuant to this article.~~ A copy of the ~~protest~~ **complaint** shall also be sent to the show committee. ~~The Board of Directors shall commence action on the protest, pursuant to this article, within 60 days from the date of receipt of the protest in the Executive Office.~~ **The Board of Directors shall consider a complaint brought pursuant to this article at the next scheduled Board meeting provided that the responding parties have had adequate time to respond.** These fees are non-refundable. The filing fees shall not apply to protests filed by the Feline Welfare Standing Committee in its abuse protocols.

122.2.3 Any ~~non-documentary~~ evidence in support of a complaint or a response must be ~~submitted in the form of a declaration or affidavit, signed or sworn under penalty of perjury by the person providing that declaration or affidavit, and include a statement that the facts contained therein are within the personal knowledge of that person.~~ **accompanied by the following statement or by substantially similar language:**

“I declare that the foregoing is true and correct and that all documents (including videos) attached are true and correct copies of such documents. I declare that I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth in this complaint. I understand and acknowledge that TICA may issue penalties against me should any statements be deliberately false, including but not limited to forgery of signatures.”

~~122.2.4 Any documentary evidence in support of a complaint or a response must be declared or sworn, under penalty of perjury, to be true and correct copies of such documents.~~

122.2.5~~4~~ The Board of Directors may refer the matter to the Legal Committee for a finding before any action is taken. The findings of the Legal Committee shall be advisory only and not binding on the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may conduct a hearing itself or appoint a Legal Committee or person to conduct the hearing. All parties shall have the right to be present, in person, with or without counsel, or to be represented by counsel and to present a statement, evidence or witnesses in their behalf.

Proposal 2 - Add Reg Rule 31.7 (Define “actively breeding”)

Rationale:

The definition of “actively breeding” should be added to the definitions and applied equally to all breed advancements, not just for advancement to PNB. Currently, this is the only advancement stage where the term is currently defined.

Since one aim of the New Breed program is to demonstrate a critical mass of breeders across TICA, then it makes sense that only one of any co-owners count towards the number of breeders required.

Pros:

- Provides a common definition of “actively breeding” for all New Breed advancements

Cons:

- Discourages breeders from co-owning Catteries and sharing the expense of developing a new breed.

Add Reg Rule 31.7:

31.7 For the purposes of breed advancements, "actively breeding" is defined as breeding at least one litter within the 2 years prior to the date of the application. If a litter or cattery is co-owned then only one person will count as “actively breeding” in the count of breeders required.

Amend Reg Rule 33.6.1.3:

33.6.1.3 At least five TICA members in good standing, in at least three different regions are actively breeding the breed (~~“actively breeding” means breeding at least one litter within the previous 2 years~~)

Proposal 3 - Add New Reg Rule 33.1.2 (Duration in Experimental Record)

Rationale:

The Experimental Record's purpose is to track the development of breeds that might in future progress to the next stages of recognition, up to and including Championship. TICA states that cats in this record are not recognized by TICA, just registered for tracking purposes.

Some people submit applications for Experimental Breeds that they have no intention of progressing to the next steps of recognition, just to be able to obtain papers with TICA logo for their kittens. And TICA currently has no rules that allow striking such a breed from its records.

The following change would ensure that Experimental breeds that either have no hope of being recognised due to outside factors (like lack of consent from another breed group to use their structural mutation) or just no intentions of progression, can be removed from the list of breeds accepted in Experimental Record (and not immediately signed back in) 5 years after they were first tracked.

| | |
|--|--|
| Pros: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• Limits the time a breed may remain as an Experimental Breed if there is no evidence of intention to progress to the Registration Only stage• Allows extension of the 5 year period for slower maturing Experimental Breeds if it can be justified and is approved by the Board | Cons: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• The proposed 33.1.2.1 means existing Experimental Breeds may stay longer in Experimental status than newly added breeds |
|--|--|

Add new Reg Rule 33.1.2 and re-number existing 33.1.2:

33.1.1 Experimental New Breeds - New breeds which are in development and which do not have an approved breed name. Experimental New Breeds are tracked in the Experimental Record. Formal approval of the Board of Directors is not required.

33.1.2 An Experimental New Breed shall be tracked for an initial period of 5 years from the date of the application. That initial period can be extended by the approval of the Board. If, at that time, the experimental breed has not advanced to Registration Only status the breed will no longer be tracked and may not reapply for a period of 5 years. During this period, no Experimental New Breed of similar name and breeding program shall be accepted by the TICA Executive Office.

33.1.2.1 Each 5 year period as an Experimental New Breed can be extended for a further 5 years by a vote of the Board of Directors. An application for each extension, providing justification for the proposed extension, must be submitted to both the Rules Committee and Genetics Committee at least 90 days prior to a scheduled TICA Board Meeting. The date of that Board Meeting must be before the end of the current 5 year period.

33.1.2.2 For breeds already on the Experimental Record as at [effective date], the initial 5 year period will count from that date.

33.1.~~3~~2 Transfer New Breed - A breed accepted for championship competition in another cat association. Transfer New Breeds shall be registered in either the Stud Book Registry or the Foundation Registry (See 36.2, 36.3, 36.4, 36.5, 36.6). Formal approval of the Board of Directors is REQUIRED for Registration Only Breed status

Proposal 4 - Amend Reg Rule 33.3.1 (Genetics Review of new Experimental Breeds)

Rationale:

Currently anyone can pay a fee and have an "experimental breed" added to those recorded. There are no oversights to this process, so TICA ends up with quite a number of breeds that are never going to be advanced due to violations of our Registration Rules. Putting this Rule in place allows the Genetics Committee to disallow such new breeds.

| | |
|---|---|
| Pros: <ul style="list-style-type: none">Introduces an approval process at the Experimental Breed level to ensure that a proposed breed is not in violation of TICA's rules | Cons: <ul style="list-style-type: none">Places power in the Genetics Committee to prohibit development of possibly viable new breeds, given that rules may change. |
|---|---|

Amend Reg Rule 33.1.1 and renumber existing 33.1.1.x rules:

33.3.1 Experimental New Breed. The Experimental New Breed shall be tracked in the Experimental Record by making application to the TICA Executive Office. The following information must be included in the application for tracking:

33.3.1.1 A brief description of the proposed breed. (This is to enable the office to identify the breed. It could be a paragraph written by a breeder, a standard from another association, or another means for identifying the cats included in the breed.) **This description and a breeding plan shall be submitted to the Genetics Committee prior to making the application to the Executive Office.**

33.3.1.2 An acknowledgement from the Genetics Committee that this proposed breed is not in violation of Registration Rule 33.2.1.

33.3.1.23 A proposed breed name that is unique.

33.3.1.23.1 The proposed breed name used for tracking in the Experimental Record is not in any way to be considered an official breed name accepted or approved by TICA and may be changed, removed or revoked at any time.

33.3.1.34 A proposed breed contact person.

33.3.1.45 A processing fee as specified in the Standing Rules.

If passed, re-number Standing Rule 303.3.1.4:

303.3.1.4~~5~~ A processing fee of \$100 will be required at the time of application to the Experimental Record.

Proposal 5 - Amend Reg Rules 33.3.1 and 33.4.4 (Experimental Breed Names)

Rationale:

The use of alphanumeric codes in place of (proposed) breed names during the initial stages of recognition of breeds will help stop inaccurate claims that Experimental Breeds are recognised or registered by TICA.

| | |
|--|---|
| <p>Pros:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none">• Allows for the development of new breeds but clarifies TICA's role as one of simply providing a tracking service for those experimental breeds. By assigning an alphanumeric code, TICA makes clear that it has not recognized the experimental breed, as a unique breed, without it having completed all requirements for formal recognition.• May assist EO and Board in determining duration of an Experimental Breed if the alphanumeric code incorporates a date | <p>Cons:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none">• Existing RO breeds continue to use their name on TICA documentation |
|--|---|

Amend Reg Rules 33.3.1 and 33.4.4:

33.3.1 Experimental New Breed. The Experimental New Breed shall be tracked in the Experimental Record by making application to the TICA Executive Office. The following information must be included in the application for tracking:

33.3.1.1 A brief description of the proposed breed. (This is to enable the office to identify the breed. It could be a paragraph written by a breeder, a standard from another association, or another means for identifying the cats included in the breed.)

33.3.1.2 A proposed breed name that is unique.

33.3.1.2.1 Upon acceptance of an application of a new Experimental New Breed, an alphanumeric code identifying that breed will be assigned by the TICA Executive Office. The code shall be used instead of the breed's name on all documentation issued by TICA for that breed. The code shall be used until the breed advances to Preliminary New Breed status, at which time it shall be changed to the Board-approved breed name.

33.3.1.2.2 For breeds already on the Experimental Record as at [effective date], alphanumeric codes will be assigned by the Executive Office and shall be used for all documentation issued after [effective date].

33.3.1.2.2.3 The proposed breed name ~~used~~ **supplied** for tracking in the Experimental Record is not in any way to be considered an official breed name accepted or approved by TICA and may be changed, removed or revoked at any time.

33.3.1.3 A proposed breed contact person.

33.3.1.4 A processing fee as specified in the Standing Rules

33.4.4 Experimental breeding programs which do not have an approved breed name shall be designated by the code EX **followed by an alphanumeric code (see Reg Rule 33.3.1.2.1).**

33.4.4.1 Cats tracked in the Experimental Record shall be designated with EX preceding the **assigned alphanumeric code** ~~proposed two-digit breed prefix~~.

Proposal 6 - Amend Reg Rules 33.3.2 and 33.3.3.6 (mutation ownership voting)

Rationale:

Currently it is not specified when during the recognition process of a new breed Rule 33.9.4 (the rule regarding "mutation ownership") should be enforced.

For clarity, this proposal explicitly adds that a positive vote is a requirement for advancement (for new breeds that fall under the rule), and that it has to be done at "entry level", not "just sometime before championship".

| | |
|--|--|
| Pros: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• Clarifies when the vote of the affected breed section must be taken | Cons: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• As a one-time vote, this would not permit revisiting permission should TICA rules change in the future.• Although unlikely to be an issue, only covers Transfer New Breeds coming in at RO stage, and not at ANB |
|--|--|

Amend Reg Rules 33.3.2 and 33.3.3.6

33.3.2 Transfer New Breed. A Transfer New Breed may apply for acceptance as a recognized breed for Registration Only by making application at least 90 days prior to the Board meeting at which acceptance is sought by submitting an electronic application to each member of the Genetics Committee and each member of the Rules Committee. Following approval of the application by the Genetics Committee and Rules Committee, the application will be submitted by the Chair of the Rules Committee to the TICA Executive Office at least 60 days prior to the Board Meeting for inclusion in the agenda. Any comments of the Genetics Committee or Rules Committee must be included. Application for Registration Only Breed status must include the following: (applications available from the TICA Executive Office or at tica.org.)

1. A brief description of the breed distinguishing it from other breeds recognized by the association.
2. A standard of the breed from another established cat association.
3. A proposed designation of Breed Classification (See 33.2).
4. A proposed breed name that is unique.
5. A proposed two-letter registration code.
6. A proposed breeding program.
7. A proposed provisional Working Group Chair.
8. A processing fee as specified in the Standing Rules.

33.3.2.1 If a Transfer New Breed includes one or more structural mutations that are “owned” by an existing breed (see 33.9.4), then immediately after submitting the application to Rules and Genetics Committees a poll must be requested from the Executive Office to obtain consent from the affected breeds. The poll can only be carried out once for each breed/breed group affected and the result of the vote shall be final. A positive vote is required for recognition as a Registration Only breed. The cost of any poll shall be the financial responsibility of the individuals requesting the poll.

33.3.2.4~~2~~ It is understood that acceptance for Registration Only implies only that TICA agrees to provide registration facilities for development of the breed in question. There is no explicit or implied guarantee that TICA will accept the breed for championship either simultaneously or at any time in the future.

33.3.3 Advancement from Experimental New Breed to Registration Only New Breed. An Experimental New Breed may apply for approval of the Board of Directors as a Registration Only Breed upon completion of the following:

33.3.3.1 At least 1 year has passed since the initial tracking of the breed in the Experimental Record.

33.3.3.2 At least 10 cats of the breed have been tracked in the Experimental Record.

33.3.3.3 At least 5 litters of the breed have been tracked.

33.3.3.4 At least 3 TICA members in good standing from 2 different Regions are on record.

33.3.3.5 Submission of an electronic Application for Advancement to Registration Only Breed 90 days prior to the Board meeting at which recognition is sought to each member of the Genetics Committee and each member of the Rules Committee. Following approval of the application by the Genetics Committee and Rules Committee, the application will be submitted by the Chair of the Rules Committee to the TICA Executive Office at least 60 days prior to the Board Meeting for inclusion in the agenda. Any comments of the Genetics Committee or Rules Committee must be included. (Applications available from the TICA Executive Office or at tica.org.)

33.3.3.6 Application must include the following: (Applications available from the TICA Executive Office or at tica.org.)

A brief description of the breed distinguishing it from other breeds recognized by the association.

A proposed breed name that is unique

A proposed two-letter registration code.

A proposed breeding program.

A proposed designation of Breed Classification (See 33.2).

A proposed provisional Working Group Chair.

Documentation of 33.3.4.1 through 33.3.4.4.

A processing fee as specified in the Standing Rules.

33.3.3.7 If a breed includes one or more structural mutations that are “owned” by an existing breed (see 33.9.4), then immediately after submitting the application to Rules and Genetics Committees a poll must be requested from the Executive Office to obtain consent from the affected breeds. The poll can only be carried out once for each breed/breed group affected and the result of the vote shall be final. A positive vote is required for recognition as a Registration Only breed. The cost of any poll shall be the financial responsibility of the individuals requesting the poll.

Proposal 7 - Amend Reg Rules 33.6.3.2, 33.7.4.5, 33.8.16 (New Breed Reporting)

Rationale:

Although the current rules talk about “years” it is not clear for PNB or ANB whether these are show years or calendar years. The New Championship Breeds rule (33.8.15) specifically states it is a “show year”.

As reports are presented at the Annual Board Meeting, it would be both more consistent and make more sense for PNB and ANB breeds to use show years, since that reflects the latest position rather than a calendar year – which by then would be 9 months old data. It would also give the Board a more realistic understanding of the status of each New Breed.

This would also require a rule change to specify the correct meeting in 33.6.3.4 and 33.7.4.5. This anomaly may be a leftover from the times when the Board only met twice a year.

For new Breeds in the first 3 years of their Championship, for consistency with other New Breed reports, the existing rule 33.8.16 should contain a deadline, refer to EO provided data and the wording on possible demotion also needs changing to be consistent with other rules for PNB and ANB.

| | |
|--|---|
| Pros: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• Annual reporting is consistent for all stages of New Breed progression• Using “show years” means statistics in the reports at the Annual will be more up to date | Cons: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• May need some extra work in the EO for new Championship breeds |
|--|---|

Amend Reg Rules 33.6.3.2, 33.7.4.5 and 33.8.16:

33.6.3.4 The Executive Office shall forward a report on litter registrations and individual cat registrations for the breed **during the show year just ended** to the Preliminary New Breed Working Group Chair each year after the ~~Winter~~ **Spring** Meeting. This information shall be used in preparing the required breed report for the Annual Meeting.

33.7.4.5 The Executive Office shall forward a report on litter registrations and individual cat registrations for the breed **during the show year just ended** to the Advanced New Breed Working Group Chair each year after the ~~Winter~~ **Spring** Meeting. This information shall be used in preparing the required breed report for the Annual Meeting.

33.8.16 It is the responsibility of the Breed Committee to document that all requirements have been met by providing a report to the Genetics Committee, the Rules Committee and the Executive Office **at least 60 days prior to the Annual Meeting. The report shall contain information supplied by the EO that corroborates the requirements of 33.8.15.** Failure to meet the requirements of 33.8.15 ~~will~~ **may** result in the breed being returned to Advanced New Breed status.

Add Reg Rule 33.8.17:

33.8.17 The Executive Office shall forward a report on individual cat registrations, cats shown and a list of active breeders (and their Region) for the breed during the show year just ended to the Breed Chair each year after the Spring Meeting. This information shall be used in preparing the report required in 33.8.16 for the Annual Meeting.

Proposal 8 - Amend Reg Rules 33.9.2.3.3 and 39.9.1 (Use of “Blue Slip”)

Rationale:

As time has gone on and procedures and systems revised, the term “Blue slip” is no longer being used and should be replaced by the correct term “breeder slip”

| | |
|---|---|
| Pros: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• Updates the rules to comply with current terminology | Cons: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• None identified. |
|---|---|

Amend Reg Rules 33.9.2.3.3 and 39.9.1

33.9.2.3.3 When registering a cat with a new trait other than color, the “non-standard” box on the ~~blue~~ **breeder** slip must be checked and the trait(s) indicated on the ~~blue~~ **breeder** slip in order to facilitate tracking.

39.9 Application for Registration. Each application for registration must fulfill one of the following:

39.9.1 Be made by submitting an individual application for registration of a cat of a registered litter issued by TICA (TICA ~~blue~~ **breeder** slip).

[remainder of rule unchanged]

Proposal 9 - Amend Reg Rule 36.6.1 and 37.2.1 (Outcrosses within Cat I)

Rationale:

Continues the registration of outcrosses in the Foundation Registry for Category I breeds that originated in Category V to preserve accurate pedigrees.

Also moves an existing restriction on the registration of cross-species cats from Standing Rules to its proper place in the Registration Rules

If the changes are approved, then Standing Rule 307.6.3 will be deleted as it is no longer appropriate.

| | |
|--|--|
| Pros: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• Adds defined rules to reinforce current registration procedures | Cons: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• Continues the registration of non-domestic feline species cats. |
|--|--|

Amend Reg Rule 36.6.1 and 37.2.1:

36.6 Foundation Registration.

36.6.1 Purpose. The Foundation Registry is for new breeds which are in an early developmental stage and in which record keeping is vital to the history of the breed. The registration of these breeds will provide an accurate, precise chronicle of the breed's progress and development, and may prove or disprove its future acceptance as a viable, healthy breed as well as providing analysis of any genetic problems inherent in a breeding program. Use of both hybrid crosses and outcrosses to cats of unknown or unregistered parentage is permitted. There are no limitations or restrictions on the breeding programs for these breeds. **The Foundation Registry is also used for registering cats that are a non-domestic species or cats which have a non-domestic species as a parent, grandparent, or great-grandparent.**

37.2 Category I: Established Breeds.

37.2.1 Purpose. This category is for established breeds which are approaching the present goals as set by their standards. These breeds have a sufficiently large available gene pool within the breed that outcrosses to other breeds (other than within a breed group) for improvement of type, increased stamina, addition of new colors, etc., are largely unnecessary. Likewise, the likelihood of finding cats of unregistered parentage which would significantly improve the breed is minimal.

37.2.1.1 Championship breeds that were in Category V during the New Breed process may continue to register and outcross to non-domestic species used to create that breed in accordance with Registration Rule 311.3.

Add Reg Rule 311.3 (and delete Standing Rule 307.6.4.1 which 311.3 then replaces):

311.3 The progeny of a domestic X non-domestic source species cross cannot be registered in the Foundation Registry as any breed other than the breed associated with that specific non-domestic source species. For example, Serval *Leptailurus serval* can only parent a Foundation Savannah, Asian Leopard Cat *Prionailurus bengalensis* can only be a parent of a Foundation Bengal, and Jungle Cat *Felis chaus* can only parent a Foundation Chausie.

If the above changes are approved, then Standing Rule 307.6.3 should be deleted:

~~307.6.3 After the transfer of breeds out of Category V to another Category it is no longer possible to register any additional non-domestic source species in the Foundation Registry. The only possible registration is offspring of TICA registered cats with a non-domestic feline in the three-generation pedigree which are only registered with the aim to breed out the non-domestic source species. This 307.6.3 takes effect December 31, 2021.~~

Proposal 10 - Add new Reg Rule 39.16 (Transfer Documentation)

Rationale:

When a breeder/seller refuses to transfer the registration, or even to register the cat/kitten, the buyer has no way to file a complaint against the breeder as there are no rules regulating this process at this moment.

However, these kinds of actions affect TICA's reputation in a negative way and it is time to have a rule on this subject so at least the breeder/seller who does not comply can be subject to disciplinary action.

This new rule might have the added benefit of cutting down on resales of cats in violations of contract where there is another co owner or where the original breeder is still the owner.

| | |
|---|--|
| Pros: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• Provides buyers with protection and recourse when a seller doesn't provide papers at the time of purchase. | Cons: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• May put sellers in violation of the rules if TICA is slow in providing the appropriate paperwork.• Some ambiguity in wording as a contract could potentially allow for payments after sending the kitten/cat to the new owner yet still not specify when the papers will be sent to the new owner. |
|---|--|

Add new Reg Rule 39.16, renumber current 39.16 and 39.17:

39.16. Unless there is a written agreement to the contrary, the breeder/seller will, at the time of the transfer, provide the buyer with the breeder slip or the certificate of registration and signed transfer of ownership. The breeder/seller does not have to provide this documentation until payment is made in full.

~~39.16~~⁷ Record of lease on cats registered in this association should be filed with the registrar.

~~39.17~~⁸ A certified three- or five-generation pedigree, of any cat registered in the stud book, ancestry record, or hybridization record, as and to the extent the pedigree is shown therein, will be furnished by the registrar upon a request signed by or consented to by the registered owner of the cat and accompanied by the required fees.

Proposal 11 - Amend Show Rules (Remove “sale” references)

Rationale:

Following the success of Proposal 6 in the 2020 Ballot which removed the designation of entries as being “for sale”, a number of show rules need updating for consistency with that change.

In addition, for consistency there should be a definition of “Exhibition Only” entries.

| | |
|--|--|
| Pros: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• Makes Show Rules consistent by removing all remaining references to “For Sale” cats• Clearly defines “Exhibition Only” | Cons: <ul style="list-style-type: none">• None identified |
|--|--|

Amend Show Rule 21.7

21.7 Benched Cat - Cats, kittens, alters and household pets present and qualified for competition **or Exhibition Only** during an entire show.

Add Show Rule 21.75:

21.75 Exhibition Only – A cat (see 21.74) that is entered in the show but is not judged in any class.

Amend Show Rule 23.8:

23.8 The show committee may permit cats or kittens 3 months of age or older to be entered for **“Exhibition Only”** ~~or sale~~.

23.8.1 No kitten under the age of 3 calendar months is permitted in the show hall under any circumstance.

23.8.2 The show committee, at its discretion, may require a TICA litter registration as proof of age for kittens under the age of 4 months of age entered as Exhibition **Only** ~~or For Sale~~.

Amend Show Rule 25.2:

25.2 Vetted Shows. A licensed practicing veterinarian acting for the club must examine each cat or kitten including household pets and entries for ~~sale or~~ **Exhibition Only** prior to benching and shall disqualify any cat that shows evidence of fungus, fleas, ear mites, or any infectious or contagious illness

Amend Show Rule 26.1.2:

26.1.2 No more than two kittens or one cat may be benched in a single cage, whether entered for competition, or for **Exhibition Only** ~~or for sale~~.

Amend Show Rule 210.6:

210.6 No exhibitor shall bring into the show hall any cat, whether for show, **Exhibition Only**, ~~sale~~, or otherwise, which is infested with any parasite, including but not limited to fleas, ear mites, lice or ticks.

Contd/...

Amend Show Rule 211.9:

211.9 Catalogs shall contain the number of cats in each of the following categories:

LH Kittens, SH Kittens,
LH Adults, SH Adults,
LH Alters, SH Alters,
LH HHP Kittens, SH HHP Kittens,
LH Household Pets, SH Household Pets,
Preliminary New Breeds,
Advanced New Breeds, and
New Traits classes

As well as optionally list each entry present for Exhibition Only, ~~including for sale cats and kittens~~ (unless listing of all cats and kittens present in the show hall is required to meet local laws, regulations, or club needs). If all cats and kittens present in the show hall must be listed in the show catalog, a statement must be included in the show's information provided to exhibitors (for example, the show flyer) that no cat or kitten may be in the show hall unless the cat or kitten information is provided to the club in advance and the cat/kitten information is included in the show catalog.